Public Document Pack

NORTH LINCOLNSHIRE COUNCIL

PLANNING COMMITTEE

9 March 2022

PRESENT: - N Sherwood (Chairman)

N Sherwood (Chairman), C Sherwood, S Bainbridge, R Ogg, M Grant, R Hannigan, D Southern and D Wells

L Foster, R Waltham and Wilson

Tanya Davies

The meeting was held at the Church Square House, High Street, Scunthorpe.

2201 SUBSTITUTIONS

Cllr Ogg for Cllr Ross, and Cllr C sherwood for Cllr J Davison.

2202 DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS AND PERSONAL OR PERSONAL AND PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS, SIGNIFICANT CONTACT WITH APPLICANTS, OBJECTORS OR THIRD PARTIES (LOBBYING) AND WHIPPING ARRANGEMENTS (IF ANY).

The following members declared a personal interest –

Councillor Ogg

Application: PA/2021/2070

Cllr N Sherwood

Application: PA/2021/2201

Cllr Wells

Application: PA/2021/1826

The following members declared that they had been lobbied –

Cllr Bainbridge—PA/2020/894

Cllr Hannigan - PA/2021/894 and PA/2020/1826

Cllr Grant - PA/2020/894

Cllr N Sherwood - PA/2021/894

Cllr Southern - PA/2021/894

Cllr Wells - PA/2021/894 and PA/2022/21

2203 TO TAKE THE MINUTES OF THE MEETINGS HELD ON 9 FEBRUARY

2022 AS A CORRECT RECORD AND AUTHORISE THE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN.

Resolved - That the minutes of the meeting held on 9 February 2022, having been printed and circulated amongst the members, be taken as read and correctly recorded and be signed by the chairman.

2204 MAJOR PLANNING APPLICATIONS.

The Group Manager – Development Management submitted a report containing details of a major application for determination by the committee, including summaries of policy context, representations arising from consultation and publicity and assessment of the applications.

2204a PA/2021/1330 OUTLINE PLANNING PERMISSION FOR UP TO 20 DWELLINGS WITH ALL MATTERS RESERVED FOR SUBSEQUENT CONSIDERATION (RE-SUBMISSION OF PA/2020/672) AT LAND OFF SCOTTER ROAD/HIGH STREET, MESSINGHAM

Cllr C Sherwood having read the officer's report had concerns about the entrance being so close to the B1400, and ongoing flooding issues in Messingham with no mention of surface water system within the report. He felt the committee should visit the site before making a decision.

It was then moved by Councillor C Sherwood and seconded by Councillor D Wells –

That the application be deferred to the next meeting to allow the committee to visit the site.

Motion Carried

2205 PLANNING AND OTHER APPLICATIONS FOR DETERMINATION BY THE COMMITTEE.

The Group Manager – Development Management and Building Control submitted a report for determination by the committee including summaries of policy context, representations arising from consultation and publicity and assessment of applications. The Head of Service updated the reports orally where appropriate. Other officers attending gave advice and answered members' questions as requested.

2206 PA/2021/894 PLANNING PERMISSION TO ERECT TWO RETAIL UNITS AND ONE DRIVE-THRU UNIT (CLASS E) WITH ASSOCIATED ACCESS, PARKING, DRAINAGE AND LANDSCAPING AT KINGSWAY HOUSE, LAND EAST OF KINGSWAY ROAD, SCUNTHORPE, DN16 2AE

An objector stated that he was speaking on behalf of a numbr of residents who would be affected by the proposals, and highlighted there had been just under 100 objects on the planning portal. He said there would be no benefit to the community from the proposals and there was not a need for it in the area due to their being similar outlets within the vicinity. He said they were also concerned about the increase in traffic and noise on what was already a busy junction.

The agent responded and thanked the officer for a comprehensive report. He highlighted the land had been allocated for housing but nobody was able to find a suitable option that would work. He stated the land hand been vacant for 10 years and was untidy. He said the investment would clean up the area and bring many more jobs with it, and there was no other site acceptable. He mentioned two tress would have to be removed in the process but a further four would be planted to replace them, and a good landscaping scheme would enhance the character of the street scene.

The Chairman read out a letter of objection from the local MP Holly Mumby-Croft.

Cllr Waltham felt the location was a prime location for development but not of this kind. He was concerned that the commercial proposal would take away business from the Town Centre and there was more suitable locations available. He said the area was a residential area, not commercial and would have a great impact on nearby residents. Also concerning was the loss of the well-established trees on the site. He urged the committee to refuse the application.

Cllr Wilson spoke as the Local Ward Member. Knowing the area very well and the land that had been vacant for 10 years, and the trees on the site that had always been there. He said it would be a great loss if they were to be removed, and felt it was an inappropriate development for the site and location.

Cllr C Sherwood stated he had serious concerns about the application and the speakers against it only reinforced those concerns. He disagreed with the Highways comments in the report and felt it was a busy junction and could cause problems if approved as Ashby Road was already very congested. The loss of the trees were also a concern for him.

Cllr Bainbridge, Grant and Southern also had concerns about the application as they felt it was the wrong place, and the wrong development.

It was moved by Cllr C Sherwood and seconded by Cllr Wells -

That planning permission be refused for the following reasons –

. 1.

The proposal, if permitted, would result in the loss of trees covered by a Tree Preservation Order and it is proposed to introduce hardstanding and hard landscaping within the root protection areas of TPO trees on the site. The proposal therefore has the potential to result in root severance and compaction to the detriment of the health of the trees and their contribution to the visual amenity of the area. The proposal is thus considered contrary to saved policy LC12 of the North Lincolnshire Local Plan, and policy CS16 of the adopted Core Strategy.

2.

The applicant has not sufficiently demonstrated that there are no alternative sites within Scunthorpe Town Centre or Ashby High Street District Centre that could accommodate the development and that the proposal will have no adverse impact on the vitality and viability of Scunthorpe town centre, Ashby High Street district centre and the nearby local shopping area at Brumby Corner. The proposal therefore fails to comply with saved policy S8 of the North Lincolnshire Local Plan.

Motion Carried.

2207 PA/2021/1826 OUTLINE PLANNING PERMISSION TO ERECT THREE DWELLINGS (ALL MATTERS RESERVED FOR SUBSEQUENT CONSIDERATION) AT LAND TO THE NORTH OF HABROUGH LANE, KIRMINGTON

The agent addressed the committee informing it that the application was significantly different to the previous one that was refused. She indicated that it would harmonise the village, provide more affordable housing along with four bungalows for local people. She stated that it would enhance the appearance on entrance to the village.

Cllr Hannigan felt there was already enough housing provision within the village, with seven new builds and only one occupied. He stated it was in open countryside, outside the development limit and now within the local plan for development.

Resolved – That planning permission be refused in accordance with the reason stated in the officer's report.

2208 PA/2021/2070 PLANNING PERMISSION FOR MATERIAL CHANGE OF USE OF LAND TO A CARAVAN SITE FOR ONE CARAVAN AT LAND EAST OF NEWLANDS LANE, EPWORTH

The agent stated that there had been no statutory objections to the application, and just one objection that was concerning the colour of the mobile home. He informed the committee that the mobile home was a standard size and was necessary for lambing season, and the occupants required a permanent presence on site for the security of the livestock.

Resolved – That planning permission be granted in accordance with the recommendations contained within the report.

2209 PA/2021/2122 PLANNING PERMISSION TO ERECT A DWELLING AT LAND ADJACENT TO 'THE BARN', WAKEFIELD FARM, CARR LANE, EAST LOUND

An objector who live adjacent to the site spoke against the application. In doing so she shared a number of concerns and these included: the site was within the historic landscape, there would be loss of amenity, the development was large in size, would overshadow her property and they would also loose privacy.

The applicant responded and stated that they had received a lot of support within the village for the proposal, that it was an infill plot and would only benefit the character of the area in the future. She stated it would blend in with the current dwellings, they had Parish Council support and felt it would only enhance the privacy of the neighbouring property.

Cllr Wells could not see any concerns with the application, and agree with the officer's recommendations.

Resolved – That planning permission be granted in accordance with the recommendations contained within the officer's report.

2210 PA/2021/2143 PLANNING PERMISSION TO ERECT A REPLACEMENT DWELLING AND GARAGE AT NEW HOUSE, HOOK ROAD, AMCOTTS, DN17 4AZ

Resolved – That planning permission be granted in accordance with the recommendations contained within the officer's report.

2211 PA/2021/2201 PLANNING PERMISSION TO ERECT SIX SEMI-DETACHED DWELLINGS WITH ASSOCIATED WORKS (RE-SUBMISSION OF PA/2019/1984) AT THE HAYMAKER, 75 MAIN STREET, BONBY, DN20 0PY

An objector respresenting a community group within the village addressed the committee and urged them to refuse the application. He informed the committee that the group had be working to retain the pub and had raised £107K to put a big together to purchase the pub, however, the bid was refused as the bid was not high enough. He stated that there was a community consultation and 76% of the respondents wanted the pub to remain in the village. He said it would be a great community loss to the village if it was no longer a public house.

The agent referred to the officer's report that recommended approval. He informed the committee that a great deal of further information had been produced and submitted to the council enhancing the reasons to sell the pub. He stated the business was not viable or sustainable and all the accounts had been submitted. He said the valuation for the sale of the pub was from the Estate Agents and plenty of time had been provided for reasonable bids.

Cllr Waltham spoke as the local Ward Member following representations received from a number of residents. He informed the committee that there was a great appetite within the community for the retention of the pub and to keep it open. He felt that there it was a narrow commercial enterprise that was offered previously, and that the new proposal would be over development for the area and not sustainable.

Cllr C Sherwood did not think the application was any different to the one previously refused and there was still the need for the facility within the village. He felt that six houses would be over development and contrary to a number of planning policies.

Cllr Grant felt the owners should be allowed to sell the property they own, but was against the proposal for six houses on the site.

It was moved by Cllr C Sherwood and seconded by Cllr Wells -

That planning permission be refused for the following reason –

The proposal would result in the loss of a valued facility/service within the rural settlement of Bonby. The council does not consider it has been adequately evidenced that there is no longer a need for the building in any form of community use. In addition, there is no alternative means of meeting such a need, as there is no accessible replacement facility in Bonby. Accordingly, the proposal is contrary to paragraph 93 of the National Planning Policy Framework, policy CS22 of the Core Strategy and saved policy C2 of the North Lincolnshire Local Plan.

Motion Carried.

2212 PA/2022/21 OUTLINE PLANNING PERMISSION TO ERECT ONE DWELLING WITH ALL MATTERS RESERVED FOR SUBSEQUENT CONSIDERATION AT LAND REAR OF LEADEN HOUSE, CHERRY LANE, BARROW UPON HUMBER, DN19 7AX

The applicant addressed the committee and outline the reasons for submitting the application. He informed the committee that the family wished to remain in the village and make a positive contribution. He felt the application met the requirements of planning policy, and that the last application was refused due to the scale and the current application was much more modest in scale. He said it had been stated that it is outside the development limit, however, it lays within the garden of the house, and has had no objection from neighbouring properties.

Cllr Wells felt that a site visit wa required to get a better picture of the site before making a decision.

It was then moved by Councillor D Wells and seconded by Councillor D Southern –

That the application be deferred to the next meeting to allow the committee to visit the site.

Motion Carried

2213 ANY OTHER ITEMS, WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE URGENT, BY REASONS OF SPECIAL CIRCUMSTANCES, WHICH MUST BE SPECIFIED.

